
GRAND JUNCTION CANNABIS LICENSING AUTHORITY 
MINUTES 

 
March 27, 2024 

 
I. Call to Order 

 
The meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. Those present were Hearing Officer 
Stephanie Rubinstein, City Attorney John Shaver and Records Manager Janet 
Harrell. Other staff present were Cannabis Compliance Officer Travis Wright, 
Staff Attorney DeLayne Merritt, and Planning Supervisor Niki Galehouse. 
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein confirmed that representatives were present for each 
item. 
 

II. Store Opening Extension Requests and Modification of Premises 
Applications 

 
1. Canna Care, LLC, 2730 Highway 50, Grand Junction, CO 81503, Retail 

Store – Continued from February 14, 2024 
 
Request for store opening extension. 
 
Eliminate second level, stairs accessing second level, and sally door; add 
hallway/warehouse access door, and update security plan. 

 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein noted that these items were continued from February 
14, 2024, for Mr. Balerio to file a minor site plan with Community Development to 
determine the amount of time needed for the extension request and to schedule 
a hearing, which Mr. Balerio did.  
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked if any requirements were outstanding. Mr. 
Balerio said he needs to submit a photometric plan and verify the sprinkler 
system's scope, and the Engineering and Transportation Department needs to 
review street access requirements. Mr. Balerio then requested a store opening 
extension to October 30, 2024.  
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked Planning Supervisor Niki Galehouse if the 
proposed timeframe for the project's completion was reasonable. Ms. Galehouse 
confirmed it was. Hearing Officer Rubinstein submitted the March 25, 2024, 
extension request letter, the Change of Use review comments and the modified 
drawing of the proposed changes into the record as Exhibit 1. 
 
City Attorney Shaver asked Mr. Balerio if he had talked to Officer Wright 
regarding the proposed modifications dated January 5, 2024. Mr. Balerio noted 
some of the proposed modifications were prompted by discussions with Officer 
Wright. Officer Wright had no concerns. 
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked if anyone present would like to speak regarding 



the extension request or the modification of the premises application. There was 
no one.  
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein approved the store opening extension request to 
October 31, 2024, and the modification of premises application. 
 

III. Show Cause Hearing 
 

1. Golden Rookie, LLC, 605 Grand Avenue, Grand Junction, CO 81501, 
Retail Store 
 
Request for store opening extension. 

 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein noted this item was continued from February 14, 
2024, as additional information was needed from Community Development (CD) 
in regard to the one-year store opening extension request. 
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked Mr. Abdool if the original lease was still in effect 
since the landlord, Vicki Sanger, notified the Authority she was no longer “part of 
the business.” Mr. Abdool confirmed the lease was still in effect and valid through 
2025. Hearing Officer Rubinstein then asked Mr. Abdool if any of the proposed 
changes would need to be approved by the landlord. He said no. 
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked Mr. Abdool if he was working with a 
professional regarding the proposed design changes. Mr. Abdool said yes: he 
was looking at a few firms. 
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked Mr. Abdool when the Change of Use 
application would be filed with CD. Mr. Abdool said that with approval to move 
forward today, he would file the application within two days. 
 
Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked Ms. Galehouse to clarify what steps Mr. Abdool 
needed to complete and provide an estimated timeframe. Ms. Galehouse 
explained that Ms. Sanger proposed more “extravagant” changes to the building, 
but if Mr. Abdool does not intend to make those types of changes, then a Change 
of Use application is all that would be required, and that process takes about 
three weeks. 
 
City Attorney Shaver asked Mr. Abdool the name of the consultant company that 
he hired and if they would also be involved in the application submittals to CD. 
Mr. Abdool said he contracted with Dynamite Productions, Inc., and they will 
provide services for both the marijuana licensing and the City’s development 
requirements to ensure local and state compliance, as they have experience in 
marijuana licensing and the City’s land development processes. 
 
City Attorney Shaver noted that Mr. Abdool missed a prior deadline issued by the 
Authority and clarified that Mr. Abdool is requesting a one-year store opening 
extension.  



Hearing Officer Rubinstein asked if anyone present would like to speak regarding 
the extension request. There was no one.  

Hearing Officer Rubinstein found good cause to continue the store opening 
extension request based on the removal of the documentary as a reason for 
delay and simplification of the proposed store changes. She noted the previously 
missed deadline and said that Golden Rookie had taken too long to reach this 
point. Hearing Officer Rubinstein granted the extension request and said she 
wanted to see this process moving faster. She required Mr. Abdool to provide a 
written statement, preferably to be completed by the professional he hired, 
detailing what exactly needs to be done to open the store, how much time it will 
take for it to be completed, and proof that the Change of Use application was 
submitted to CD and turn it into the City Clerk’s Office by the end of the day on 
April 29, 2024. Mr. Abdool confirmed with Hearing Officer Rubinstein that she 
requires a detailed timeline and that the Change of Use application needs to be 
filed within the next two days.  

Hearing Officer Rubinstein will determine an appropriate time for the extension 
based on her review of the written statement.  

IV. Other Business

There was none.

V. Adjournment

The meeting was adjourned at 2:22 p.m.







  

       

            

 
            

  

       
               

          

        
   
     

        
        

    
  

  

 
      

            
                 

   
         
  

 
                

                      
                   

      
  
  

      
          

             
  

       
                

                  
               








